New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH)
ACT for Youth Center of Excellence (COE) Request for Applications (RFA)
FAU #1112210458

Questions and Answers

The responses herein are the official responses by NYSDOH for questions submitted by potential applicants that were received by the due date of March 21, 2012 and are hereby incorporated into the ACT for Youth RFA #1112210458 issued on March 7, 2012. In the event of any conflict between the RFA and these responses, the requirements or information contained in these responses will prevail.
General Questions:

1. Question:  Are current Center of Excellence (COE) providers eligible to renew their funding? 
2. Question: If our agency is currently a NYSDOH Comprehensive Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention (CAPP) program provider, would we still be eligible to apply as either the lead agency or a subcontractor that provides services through this grant?

3. Question: Is the author/program developer of one of the evidence-based programs funded via CAPP eligible to apply as a lead or partner agency of a COE proposal?

Answer to Question 1, 2 & 3: All lead applicants must meet eligibility criteria as contained in Section II, page 7 of the RFA to be considered for funding. Current COE grantees, CAPP providers or authors/program developers of programs may apply for funding as a lead agency pursuant to this RFA if they meet the minimum eligibility requirements listed in Section II, page 7 of the RFA. As stated in this section “the application must identify one lead organization; however the applicant may include collaborations with other appropriate agencies to meet the statewide needs of this RFA.” Therefore, a lead agency may enter into a subcontract with another agency to meet the deliverables of the ACT for Youth COE RFA. However, as stated on page 63 of the RFA “Subcontracts are subject to review and approval by the NYS Health Department.”
4. Question: Our approach is different; we are not using a large academic center, but a collaboration of community health centers that provide health care to high risk youth on the front lines. We would be able to do all that is required, but using hands on experience for problem solving. Could you give us feedback if you would be interested in this approach? We don't want to put all our resources into preparing for this if it is just meant for a major institution. 

Answer: Lead applicants must meet the minimum eligibility requirements listed in the ACT for Youth COE RFA. Please refer Section II, page 7, of the RFA for these requirements.  See also response to Questions #1-3 above. All applicants will be reviewed based on the quality of the information contained in the applications as outlined in Section V of the RFA.
5. Question: Question relates to pg. 16: Section V.A.5.e. Is the lead agency required to have two physical sites in upstate and downstate, or maintain sites in one area and also share facilities with a program partner?

Answer:  As stated on page 16, Section V. A. 5. E, “applicants need to describe their organization’s (and collaborating organizations, if applicable) ability to provide community-focused services and support to DOH-funded adolescent health programs on a statewide basis.”  Applicants need to provide evidence of a presence or proposed presence in all regions of the state, and of their organization’s experience working with various communities within the regions. At a minimum, a physical presence should be demonstrated in the Metropolitan New York City area and an upstate location. The physical presence can be accomplished by the lead agency and/or their collaborating organizations.
6. Question: Pg. 7: Section II.A. (first paragraph) “Applicants must employ a Project Director who will be responsible for the ACT for Youth COE administration, operation and oversight.” Must this person be devoted 100% to this project?

Answer: As stated in Section IIA page 7 of the RFA, applicants must employ a Project Director who will be responsible for the ACT for Youth COE administration, operation and oversight.  The Project Director does not need to be employed 100% for this project, but needs to be  accessible full-time for communications, including e-mail, and will attend meetings with NYSDOH along with other appropriate staff. The applicant should ensure the percent effort for this position is consistent with the proposed scope of services, reasonable, and cost effective. 

7. Question: Page 4 of the RFA states that the COE concept was created in 2000. We were wondering if you could please provide a list of the current and former recipients of this grant award.

Answer: Cornell University was funded from 2000 – 2006 and from 2006-2012 as the ACT for Youth COE. Mt. Sinai Adolescent Health Center was also funded as an ACT for Youth COE from 2000-2006.
8. Question: The ACT for Youth COE RFA says the work plan is in attachment 8, but there is no attachment 8 as far as we can tell.  There is a sample program work plan on page 45, Appendix D.  Can you confirm this?  

Answer: All RFA attachments, including Attachment 8 Work Plan, are contained as separate files on the NYSDOH grants page: http://www.health.ny.gov/funding/rfa/1112210458/index.htm below the Request for Applications.
9. Question: If the current ACT for Youth COE does not continue to provide services in the next round of funding, what is their role in the transition of COE leadership?

Answer: The current funding for the ACT for Youth COE ends on June 30, 2012. The successful applicant for the ACT for Youth COE RFA that begins July 1, 2012 should be prepared to meet program deliverables at the beginning of the initiative. The Department will work with the funded applicant to support transition to the new funding cycle.
Fiscal:
10. Question: What would be the appropriate salary level for the Project Director position? 

Answer:  The New York State Department of Health has no recommendations regarding appropriate salary level for the project director.  Applicants must include a salary for this position in the budget pages (Attachment 10 of the RFA) and ensure it is consistent with the proposed scope of services, reasonable, and cost effective. 
11. Question: Are there any requirements as to the salary range for trainers of the CAPP health educators? 
Answer:  No, there are no requirements for the salary range for trainers for the CAPP health educators. Applicants must include salaries for positions in the budget pages (Attachment 10 of the RFA) and ensure salaries are consistent with the proposed scope of services, reasonable, and cost effective. 
12. Question: Is there a cap for Consulting Service related expenses? 

Answer: No, the RFA does not contain a cap for consulting related services. Applicants must include all appropriate expenses in the budget pages (Attachment 10 of the RFA) and ensure these costs are consistent with the proposed scope of services, reasonable, and cost effective. 
13. Question: Can we claim fringe benefits on outside consultants? 
Answer: No, fringe benefits cannot be claimed for outside consultants unless a consultant is listed as personnel for a sub-contract entered into by the lead agency.
14. Question: We have a question regarding the Indirect Costs rate for the ACT COE RFA.  What is permitted? 

Answer: As stated on page 62 of the RFA “Administrative/Indirect Costs,” NYS funded indirect (as a %) or administrative costs (budget line item detail) may not exceed ten percent (10%) of your budget due to federally imposed administrative caps on contract funds. 
Program Requirements:

15. Question: For the annual CAPP providers meeting and annual youth conference, what is the COE responsible for paying for?

Answer: As stated in Section VB, page 20, “Budget Forms “the ACT for Youth COE would be responsible for costs incurred for convening an annual meeting of DOH-funded youth serving programs. Specifically,” Funding is expected to be allocated to support one annual statewide meeting of DOH-funded adolescent health providers in Albany for approximately 150 attendees. Individual contractors will be asked to pay for travel, lodging and food outside of meeting/training times. The COE will be expected to pay for all of the rest of any expenses related to the statewide meeting or the trainings, including speakers, room rentals, equipment, food during the meeting/training (such as breaks and lunch), and any other related costs. The costs of COE travel, overnight lodging, and meals other than lunch should be included. Costs should be allocated in accordance with New York State Office of the State Comptroller guidelines. These limitations, including the current available rates, may be found by accessing the following web site: http://osc.state.ny.us/agencies/travel/travel.htm “
As a point of clarification, there is no annual youth conference that is required, just the annual meeting of the DOH-funded youth serving programs.  
16. Question: Is the annual meeting for CAPP providers and the annual youth conference two different events or can they be combined?
Answer: Refer to Question and Answer# 15 above.
17. Question: Are there any evaluations completed in the last three years of the ACT for Youth Initiative that are available?
Answer: Evaluations done by the currently funded ACT for Youth COE are listed on their web site at: http://www.actforyouth.net/

18. Question: We want to be clear what DOH means by “program model” which is used in different places.  
1) Page 16, # 4.B:  “Describe the need to evaluate short, intermediate, and long-term outcomes specific to evaluating the effectiveness of funded adolescent pregnancy prevention programs (CAPP, CAPP-PREP, and AEGP) and program models.”

2) Page 17, #6. C:  “Describe how you will establish a method for collecting and analyzing data for evaluating the effectiveness of funded adolescent pregnancy prevention programs (CAPP, CAPP-PREP, and AEGP) and program models.”   

By “program models” are you referring to the different strategies that comprise the three pregnancy prevention initiatives (CAPP, CAPP-PREP, and AEGP)? In other words, we are asked here to discuss both a) evaluation of funded programs and b) over-all effectiveness of each initiative’s strategies?

Answer: Program model refers to the components that comprise each pregnancy prevention initiative (CAPP, CAPP-PREP, and AEGP) and the overall effectiveness of each initiative.
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